# 1997-98 YEARBOOK FOR ORIGINAL FREE WILL BAPTISTS

## Table of Contents

Foreword	7
Directory of Ordained Ministers	9
Directory of Licensed Ministers	35
Directory of Churches	37
Directory of Denominational Ministries	124
Minutes of State Bodies	
Convention	129
Woman's Auxiliary	143
Minutes of Conferences and Association	161
Piedmont	162
Albemarle	168
Western	178
Pee Dee	186
Eastern	194
Cape Fear	200
Central	210
Statistical Tables	223

# MINUTES of the CAPE FEAR CONFERENCE of ORIGINAL FREE WILL BAPTISTS

Held at Wooten's Chapel Free Will Baptist Church Raleigh, North Carolina November 11, 1997

### **Officers**

(as voted upon in the 1997 Session)

Moderator: The Reverend Al Markuson
Assistant Moderator: The Reverend Fred Baker
Secretary: The Reverend Michael Ledbetter
Treasurer: The Reverend Phillip Boykin

### **Executive Board**

Billy Nowell, Al Markuson, Michael Ledbetter Phillip Boykin, J. B. Caton

# **Standing Boards Board of Trustees**

Ray Warrick (2002), Mosby Elmore (2001) Raymond Godwin (2000), J. N. Bryant (1999), Ray G. Smith (1998)

### **Board of Education**

Martha Parsons (2002), Helen Coats (2001), Bobby Tew (2000), Peggy Clifton (1999), Peyton Lee (1998)

### **Ordaining Board**

Fred Baker (2002), Frank Harrison (2001), Phillip Boykin (2000), Edmundo Gonzalez (1999), Charles Carroll (1998)

### **Ordained Ministers**

(P-Present, A-Absent, E-Excused)

P	Armstrong, Henry	P	Kennedy, Dean
Ā	Ard, Norman	P	•
P	Baker, Fred		Ledbetter, Michael
		E	Lee, John Raeford
A	Barrow, William David	P	Markuson, Al
P	Benson, Swade	P	Markuson, Chris
Α	Blackman, James Cecil	E	McLamb, Tony
P	Boling, Dewey C.	E	Miles, Edward W.
P	Byrd, Raeford	P	Nowell, Billy
P	Boykin, Phillip	P	Parrish, Tony
P	Britt, Gene	Α	Painter, Edward
P	Carroll, Charles	E	Parker, Wilson W.
E	Casey, Scott	P	Phillips, Kenneth
E	Caton, J. B.	Ε	Pollock, Dennis
P	Clifton, Roy	E	Raper, Burkette
P	Coats, C. M.	Α	Scarborough, Jeff
$\mathbf{P}_{i}$	Corbett, James	P	Smith, Elijah Floyd
P	Fulcher, Jesse	E	Stanley, Hubert
Ε	Godwin, Lewis	E	Tew, Bobby
P	Gonzalez, Edmundo	P	Thompson, Elmer
P	Hargrove, Wayne	Α	Tyner, Luby
P	Harrison, Frank	Α	Tyner, William J.
A	Harris, John Robert	P	Warrick, Al
P	Hayes, Ronnie	P	Weeks, Sam
P	Hogg, Atlas	E	van der Plas, Willem
Е	Johnson, Earl	Ā	Vann, Sexton
_			

### **Licensed Ministers**

- A Martin, Gary—Riverside
- A Wall, Chris-Lanwood Chapel
- P Bobby Holmes—Yelverton Grove
- P Massingill, John-Pleasant Grove
- P Brown, Marc-Wooten's Chapel

### **Proceedings**

The One Hundred Forty-Third Session of the Cape Fear Conference of the Original Free Will Baptists convened at the Wooten's Chapel Free Will Baptist Church, Raleigh, NC, November 11, 1997.

The session was called to order by the Moderator, the Reverend Billy Nowell. The congregation sang "Standing On The Promises," led by Peyton Lee. Scripture and prayer were offered by the Reverend Jesse Fulcher, pastor of Shady Grove Free Will Baptist Church. Psalm 139 was the basis of his devotion. We were welcomed by the Reverend Charlie Carroll of the host church. The response was given by the Reverend Billy Nowell.

The rules of the Credentials Committee were explained by the secretary as were adopted by the one hundred and fourteenth session, which states: "In all future sessions of the Cape Fear Conference, the Credentials Committee shall be instructed to issue a badge of identification to all duly registered ministers, delegates, and visitors, and that no person be allowed to vote who does not properly display said badge. It is understood that visitors shall be granted all rights and privileges except that of voting. It shall be the duty of the Credentials Committee to explain the registration at the opening of the Cape Fear Conference."

The roll call of the officers, ministers, standing boards, and churches were called. The moderator recognized the visitors and welcomed them to the session.

The following temporary committees were appointed to serve during the session with the first person named to serve as chairman:

Credentials Committee: Marc Brown, Al Smith—of the host church

Temperance/Resolutions Committee: James Corbett, Jim Bogle, Ken Phillips

Nominating Committee: Frank Harrison, Dean Kennedy, Fred Baker

Obituary Committee: Roy Clifton, Ed Gonzalez

The Moderator, Billy Nowell, spoke on the great need of ministers in the ministry. He said that we are living in perilous times as the Bible has plainly taught. We live in a day of apathy when no one seems to really care anymore. The society in which we live needs men who will do right so the government will do right. Our problems go beyond the walls of the church. The real church is not just on Sunday, but every day doing the work of the Lord. God is the one who takes the clay and makes the difference! He encouraged all of the ministers to pray for one another and pray for others to follow in the ministry.

We proceeded with the reports of the denominational ministries. Our Executive Administrator, the Reverend Scott Sowers gave an overall look at the departmental ministries. He summarized the work that each department is accomplishing and asked for your support prayerfully and financially. He gave us information of the "Wall of Honor" which is to be displayed in the Convention office. This will be a permanent plaque for future generations.

The Reverends Bobby Taylor, Harold Jones, Frank Harrison, and Bruce Dudley were recognized for their leadership in the various departments.

An announcement was made concerning the Franklin Graham Crusade in the fall of 1998 at Greenville, NC. The Reverend Gene Britt is the contact person for the Selma and Smithfield area.

Brother Peyton Lee was called to lead us in singing, "He Leadeth Me." The moderator led us in a time of prayer. We have a lot of ministers that are very sick at this time. Prayer was made for them. Frank Harrison was called upon for this special prayer.

We took time to hear the report of the Cape Fear Ministerial Association. (see reports)

Our worship hour began with singing "At The Cross." Offering and prayer was given by the host church. The Reverend Phillip Boykin gave a special presentation honoring Mr. H. T. Hinson for the years of dedicated service to the Cape Fear Conference. The Reverend Billy Nowell read the history of Mr. H. T. Hinson. The Reverend Boykin had a plaque made in his honor and presented it to him at home. Mr. H. T. Hinson was unable to attend because of poor health. He will be greatly missed in the future meetings.

Special singing was presented by the host church. A young man came from his job to sing a

solo rendition of "Amazing Grace." Our hearts were stirred by this manner in which this man sang. Miss Dupree sang "Come Home." Our hearts and souls were ready for the morning message.

Dr. Wayne Hargrove of the Verona Free Will Baptist Church preached from Judges 2:6. He noted the "third generation" that knew not God from that passage. The former generation knew the promises of God in the Promised Land but this generation no longer knew the God of Israel. Joshua told his people to "choose you this day whom you will serve." This generation chose not to follow God. It was noted that they failed to follow God because of the things they failed to remember. Number one, they forgot "where they came from." They did not recognize God's great hand in their past history. Number two, they failed because of the "things they changed." They served other gods and broke the laws of marriage. We must remember the real purpose of the church is to win souls, not to have church dinners. Thirdly, they failed because of "the things they lost." They lost their convictions, their standards, and lost the power of God. In closing, Reverend Hargrove used the words of Haggai, "consider your ways."

The moderator noted that we were ahead of schedule and he proceeded with the following reports:

Ordaining Council: the Reverend Frank Harrison (see reports).

Woman's Auxiliary: no report.

Board of Education: Martha Parsons.

Dr. Michael Pelt was recognized and he reported on the recent historical tour of some of our churches.

The Reverend Charlie Carroll gave us instructions concerning the noon meal. He blessed the food and were dismissed until the afternoon session.

### Afternoon Session

The afternoon session began with singing "Victory in Jesus," led by Peyton Lee. The Reverend Al Warrick, pastor of Palmer Memorial Free Will Baptist Church, brought the devotion and prayer.

The moderator welcomed the Reverend Jim Bogle into our fellowship as the newest member of the Cape Fear Conference.

The Reports of the Standing Boards were given:

Executive Committee: Michael Ledbetter (see reports)

Cape Fear Sunday school: Al Markuson

After much research by Brother Al Markuson, the following report was given. The Sunday School Convention of the Cape Fear Conference had its beginning around 1893. It has existed until this day. After further investigation, our Constitution says that the Sunday School Convention is under the leadership of the Board of Education. We do not know when it became separate from the Board of Education. As noted, we had voted on the motion made under the Executive report, so the Sunday School Convention is under the Board of Education once again. It was further noted that the Sunday School Convention had approximately \$500 in their account and this money will be turned over into the scholarship fund. We will work with them to ensure the vital ministry of the Sunday school.

Cape Fear Board of Education: Martha Parsons.

The reports of the temporary committees were as follows:

Temperance/Resolutions: (see reports)

Obituary: (see reports)
Credentials: (see reports)
Nominating: (see reports)
Treasurer's Report: (see reports)

The Moderator turned over the responsibilities to the newly elected Moderator, the Reverend Al Markuson. A rising vote of thanks was given to the outgoing Moderator, the Reverend Billy Nowell for the three terms he served.

An invitation was given by the Reverend Al Markuson, of the Cross Ridge/Covenant Free Will Baptist Church, to host the one hundred and forty-fourth session of the Cape Fear Conference. Motion was made and carried to accept this invitation. The 1998 session of the Cape Fear Conference will meet Tuesday, November 10, 1998.

A motion was made by the Reverend Frank Harrison that all the churches of the Cape Fear Conference prepare a history of their church for the year 2000. The Conference Secretary is to inform the churches by letter of this action. These are to be submitted to the Conference and compiled for distribution among our churches.

A motion was made and carried to honor Mr. H. T. Hinson on the "Wall of Honor" displayed at our headquarters.

With no other business at hand, a motion was made and carried to leave all unfinished business to the Executive Committee. Motion was made to adjourn and we closed in prayer.

### **Nominating Committee Report**

The following nominations are suggested by the committee for the approval of the Conference.

### **Standing Boards**

Board of Trustees: Ray Warrick (2002)
Board of Education: Martha Parsons (2002)
Peggy Clifton to fill the unexpired term of Ruth Scarborough
Ordaining Board: Fred Baker (2002)

### (two-year terms)

Moderator: Al Markuson
Assistant Moderator: Fred Baker
Treasurer: Phillip Boykin
Clerk: Michael Ledbetter
Member-at-Large: J. B. Caton

Respectfully submitted, Frank Harrison, *Chairman* Fred Baker Dean Kennedy

### **Obituary Committee**

The Obituary Committee remembered the life of the Reverend Kenneth Peedin. Old Testament Scripture Psalm 23 was read and New Testament Scripture 2 Timothy 4:6–8 was read. It was noted that we lost a faithful steward in Dola Dudley who served our Conference until her

health did not allow her to perform her duties. These two will be greatly missed. Our loss is Heaven's gain. A time of silent meditation was given and prayer.

Respectfully submitted, Roy Clifton Edmundo Gonzalez

### **Resolutions/Temperance Committee**

- 1. BE IT RESOLVED that we ask the Executive Committee of the Cape Fear Conference to look into the feasibility of the Cape Fear Conference coming together once a year for a united Sunday evening service and that the Executive Committee determine the time, date and location.
- 2. BE IT RESOLVED that we give a rising vote of thanks to Wooten's Chapel Free Will Baptist Church for hosting the 143rd Session of the Cape Fear Conference.

Respectfully submitted,
James Corbett
Jim Bogle
Ken Phillips

### **Cape Fear Ministerial Association**

The Cape Fear Ministerial Association met on March 24, 1997. There were 20 ministers present. The program was given by the Reverend Scott Sowers, Executive Administrator of our Convention. He spoke of his desire to bring our denomination together and work together so we can be about our Father's business.

The Cape Fear Ministerial Association met on June 23, 1997 with 17 ministers present. The Reverend Frank Harrison was in charge of the program. He led the group in discussion about Preparing for Revival. Three laws of revival: 1. Revival is always dependent on the Holy Spirit. 2. People must have a hunger for God's moving. 3. Revival depends on prayer.

The Cape Fear Association met August 25, 1997. There were 15 ministers present. The Reverend Harold Jones, director of our Foreign Missions, gave the program. He showed us slides from the "short term" mission trip to the Philippines. He encouraged all our pastors to consider going on a short term mission trip and the program was enjoyed by all.

Respectfully submitted, Phillip Boykin, Secretary

### **Credentials Committee**

Ministers Present	26
Ministers Excused	16
Ministers Absent	. 8
Delegates	23
Visitors	17
Licensed Ministers	3
Total in Attendance	69

Respectfully submitted,
Marc Brown
Al Smith (of the host church)

### **Ordaining Board**

The Ordaining Board met at 1 PM at the First Free Will Baptist Church in Smithfield, NC on March 24, 1997, with all members present.

By motion, the Reverend Scott Casey asked to be a member of the Cape Fear Conference and was cleared to serve as pastor of Hopewell Free Will Baptist Church.

By motion, Mr. John Massengill, a member of Pleasant Grove Church, was approved for license.

Mr. Al Warrick met with the Board and by motion was approved for ordination on April 13, 1997.

By motion, the Board approved that all future candidates for license be required to submit a written copy of their conversion experience and call to the ministry to the Ordaining Board and that each candidate be assigned to his local pastor and a member of Ordaining Board as a monitoring process.

The Ordaining Board met on June 23, 1997, at the First Free Will Baptist Church in Smithfield, NC with all members present.

By motion, the Reverend Ron Deans was cleared to serve as pastor of St. Mary's Grove Church. By motion, the Reverend Jesse Fulcher was cleared to serve as pastor of St. Mary's Grove Church.

By motion, the Reverend Jesse Fulcher was cleared to serve as pastor of Shady Grove Church and transfer from the Eastern Conference to the Cape Fear Conference.

By motion, Mr. Marc Brown, a member of Wooten's Chapel Church was approved by the Ordaining Board for license.

The Ordaining Board met on August 25, 1997 at the First Free Will Baptist Church in Smithfield, NC. All members were present except the Reverend Ed Gonzalez. The Reverend Henry Armstrong served as his proxy.

Mr. Jeff Hayes met with the Board to discuss the procedure of transfer back to the Original Free Will Baptist Church from another denomination. The procedure was explained to him as outlined in our Statement of Faith and Discipline.

Since the last report of October 4, 1996 to the Conference, Mr. Lewis Godwin was ordained on November 10, 1996 at Lanwood Chapel.

A letter was sent to Mr. Roy Nordon on November 21, 1996 informing him that the five-year time limit had expired as of October 31, 1996 and that he could appear before the Board to renew the process if he so desired.

May 22, 1997—a letter of transfer was granted to the Reverend Tony Parrish, who requested a transfer of membership to the Eastern Conference.

On September 2, 1997 a letter of transfer was granted to the Reverend Davie Brinson, who requested a transfer to the Western Conference.

New ministers by transfer to the Cape Fear Conference: The Reverends Jesse Fulcher, Scott Casey, James Corbett.

Mr. Chris Wall turned in his license as an Original Free Will Baptist and is no longer a licensed minister. His letter was postmarked February 11, 1997.

Respectfully submitted, Frank R. Harrison, Secretary

### **Executive Committee**

November 7, 1996

The Executive Committee met after the 142nd Session of the Cape Fear Conference. A motion was made and carried that Mike Ledbetter prepare the minutes of the 142nd Session for printing in the *Yearbook*. With no other business we adjourned.

### May 8, 1997 (Called Meeting)

The Executive Committee met at Lee's Chapel Free Will Baptist Church. All members were present, except for H. T. Hinson and the Rev. J. B. Caton. The purpose of the meeting was to discuss funding for the Cape Fear Scholarship. Due to the lack of funds available, one scholarship will be presented this year sometime in July. It was the concensus of the committee that we should present the further funding of the scholarships at the Conference. The consensus was to let the Conference decide on future funding.

A letter was read, written by our clerk, to the committee giving authorization to Phillip Boykin to sign checks on behalf of the Conference. (Copy of letter is on file)

It was noted by the Reverend Boykin that Mr. H. T. Hinson's health had been failing for the past several months. After much discussion, the following motion was made: Due to the illness of Mr. H. T. Hinson, Treasurer of the Cape Fear Conference, the Executive Committee recommended that the Reverend Phillip Boykin, assistant treasurer, assume the duties of active treasurer. Reverend Boykin will fill this office until the Cape Fear Conference.

The Reverend Boykin and the Reverend Ledbetter were asked to go to the bank and take care of necessary business on behalf of the Conference. We now have the proper ID for the Cape Fear to conduct business under the guidelines of the IRS.

### August 4, 1997

The Executive Committee met at the Lee's Chapel Free Will Baptist Church to plan the 143rd session of the Cape Fear Conference. After much discussion, the speakers were nominated and the committees were appointed.

It was noted that Mr. H. T. Hinson's health still had not improved enough for him to assume the office of Treasurer. It was the consensus of the committee that the 143rd Session of the Cape Fear Conference should recognize Mr. Hinson for his faithfulness to the Conference over the past number of years. It was further noted that Mr. H. T. Hinson be named "Treasurer Emeritus" and this action be published in *The Free Will Baptist* and a plaque be given in his honor.

The Reverend Al Markuson noted that the Sunday School Board has funds that are not being used. After much discussion a motion was made and carried that all Sunday school funds and activity of the Sunday School Convention be incorporated with the Conference Board of Education (an explanation will be given by the Reverend Markuson).

A motion was made and carried that the Reverend Phillip Boykin receive the honorarium for the office of Treasurer since he is carrying on the work of treasurer.

With no other business we adjourned with prayer.

Respectfully submitted, Michael Ledbetter, Conference Clerk Billy Nowell, Moderator

### Treasurer's Report

110050	ici a rechare	
Opening Balance		\$ 812.27
Mike Ledbetter (Conference Expense)	(150.00)	662.27
Kathy Markuson (Mileage)	(50.00)	612.27
Total Month Ending 6/30/97	(200.00)	
United Carolina Bank	(5.00)	607.27
Union Meeting	<u>386.00</u>	993.27
Total Month Ending 7/31/97	381.00	
Home Missions	(48.25)	945.02
Foreign Missions	(48.25)	896.77
Phillip Boykin (Mileage)	(10.00)	886.77
Total Month Ending 8/31/97	(106.50)	
		And the second second
Mike Ledbetter (Mileage)	(64.80)	821.97
Kathy Markuson (Mileage)	(30.00)	791.97
Philli Boykin (Honorarium)	(150.00)	641.97
Deposit	548.93	1,190.90
Total Month Ending 9/30/97	304.13	
Rev. Dennis Pollock (Love Offering)	(200.00)	990.90
Home Missions	(68.50)	922.40
Foreign Missions	(68.50)	853.90
Total Month Ending 10/31/97	(337.00)	
GRAND TOTAL	41.63	853.90

Respectfully submitted, Rev. Phillip Boykin, *Treasurer* 

### Woman's Auxiliary Report

Greetings to the Cape Fear Conference from the District Woman's Auxiliary. God continues to bless all of our work for which we give Him the glory and the praise.

Palmer Memorial Free Will Baptist Church, Raleigh, NC was the host for our Fall Convention which was held on October 9, 1996. "It Is Finished" was the theme for the Convention with Scripture taken from John 19:30. There were 59 in attendance with 19 churches represented. A Life Membership Award was presented to Claudette G. Lane, District President, by Mrs. Mavie Daughtry, District Study Course Chairman. This was truly an honor and was sincerely appreciated. A motion was made and approved to have the next two Conventions meet from 9:30 to 12:30 PM with registration beginning at 9 AM. It was a good day of fellowship and worship for all who attended.

Oak Grove Free Will Baptist Church, Newton Grove, NC was the host for the Spring Convention held on April 19, 1997. The Convention theme was "Angels, God's Messengers" with Scripture from Acts 1:10–11. Attendance was 71 with 19 churches represented. There were two churches, Johnston Union and Shady Grove, who reached A-1 status this year. Mrs. Helen Floyd, Hopewell Free Will Baptist Church, presented a memorable tribute to eight deceased auxiliary members during the Memorial Service. This was the first Convention to be held on a trial basis for a half day. It seemed to be enjoyed by all and was a special day of worship, music, love, and fellowship.

The Cape Fear District sponsored one Study Course this year at Yelverton Grove Free Will Baptist Church, Smithfield, NC. Reverend Jeff Daughtry, pastor of Westside Free Will Baptist Church, Kinston, was the speaker on November 12, 1996 on "Methods: What Kind of Auxiliary Member Am I?"

Our Woman's Auxiliary supports all of the denominational ministries prayerfully and financially. We sponsor the Cape Fear Youth Program which meets each month. Please pray for our auxiliary that God will continue to bless us and give us a greater desire and commitment to serve Him than we have had in the past.

Respectfully submitted, Claudette G. Lane, *President* Betty Strickland, *Secretary* 

							*	,					٠
									1 1 1				
CHURCHES	1997 Membership	A 45			Gain			Loss		Net	Sunday	Avg. SS	Avg. MW
Albemarie Conference	Membership	Active	Inactive	Baptism	Letter	Other	Deceased	Letter	Other	Change	School	Atten.	Atten.
Belhaven FWB Church													
Free Union FWB Church	454										-		1
Gum Neck	151	151		2		1	3	0	0	1	104	95	12
Hickory Chapel FWB Church	44					0	3	0	. 0	-3	12	12	1
	269	176	93	3	, 0	1	2	3	0	-1	73	63	9
Malachi's Chapel FWB Church	157			Ō	2	. 0	0	3	0	-1	38	31	3:
Mt. Tabor FWB Church	164	. 84	83	0	C	1	2	2	0	-3	87	54	6
Mt. Zion FWB Church	72	22	53	1	1	0	0	2	1	-1		17	
Plymouth, First FWB Church	34	34	10	Ō	5	0	0	4	0				
Shiloh FWB Church	206	100	106	5	0	0	1	0				40	_
Sidney FWB Church	189			ō	2			0				74	
Sound Side FWB Church	122			3	.,				_				
St. Paul FWB Church	94	47	51		100								
Trinity FWB Church	39			0								40	4
Union Chapel FWB Church-Albemarie	246	147		2						-6 		26	
							<del></del>			4	83	51	
Albemarie Totals	1787	773	- 428	18		7	19	22	1	9	742	586	653
Cape Fear Conference					. (,						İ		
Bethel FWB Church													
Casey's Chapel FWB Church	135	69	66	2			1		2	-1	70	57	64
Covenant of the Deaf OFWB Mission									_	0			
	14	10	4	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	10	10	10
CrossRidge FWB Mission	66	31	35	0	0	1	0	0	0	. 1	40	25	30
Daly's Chapel FWB Church	· 50	15	35			_				ō	15	10	. 14
Faith FWB Church-Cape Fear	137	45	92	2	6	Ō	0	. 0	0	- 8	94	72	79
Goldsboro, First FWB Church	221	111	110	1		2	3	2	0	0	111	87	100

	1997	s	Gain					Loss		Net	Sunday	Avg. SS	Avg. MW
CHURCHES	Membership	Active	Inactive	Baptism	Letter	Other	Deceased	Letter	Other	Change	School	Atten.	Atten.
Haymount FWB Church	136	136	**; <del></del> -	15	- 3	2	1	4	0	15		68	119
Hopewell FWB Church	249			3	2	0	3	1	. 0	1	84	60	82
Johnston Union FWB Church	166			9	6	Ö	1	· · · · O	· · · · O	14	117	80	110
Lanwood Chapel FWB Church	71	50	1.5	0	./ 0	4	1	0	0	3	57	45	5
Lee's Chapel FWB Church	340		1.50	6	4	0	- 6	0	0	4	200	145	18
Mt. Olive FWB Church-Cape Fear	7			0	0	O	0	0	0	0		No. 10 Person	
New Freedom FWB Church	Arts to the transfer			1,000		-			1 4 7	O	- 1	100 M 100 M 100 M	*
Oak Grove FWB Church	163			2	0	0	7	0	0	-5	130	47	5
Palmer Memorial FWB Church	177	54	123	0	0	- 0	2	2	0	-4	39	36	4:
Pleasant Grove FWB Church	188	188		: 1	5	0	0	2	. 0	4	93	70	9
Powhatan FWB Church	279			2	18	11	7	, 12	0	12	113	104	12
Riverside FWB Church	98		· :	5	1	0	0	0	0	6	70	60	10
Robert's Grove FWB Church	219			· · · · · 7	2	. 0	2	5	0	2	154	97	" 11
Shady Grove FWB Church	267			8	1	1	2	12	1	-45	90	70	8
Smithfield, First FWB Church	83	45	38	6	1	1	1	2	~~~~0	5	30	25	4
Smyrna FWB Church	170	170	1.0	. 13	C	C	) . 2	2	C	5	108	85	8
St. Mary's Grove FWB Church	197	197	34	1	5		4	11	C		100	60	10
St. Paul FWB Church	167	96	70	2	1	C	2	2	C	-1	121	70	7
Steven's Chapel FWB Church		7			1.00								
Tee's Chapel FWB Church	324	324	34	2	9	(	3	2	C	) (	198	139	16
Vandora Springs FWB Church	97	- 62	35	. 10	) (	2	2 2	2	2 0	) 8	50	33	6
West Clinton FWB Church	22	20	2	C		0	0	) C	) . (	) (	20	15	1
Wooten's Chapel FWB Church	179	87	92	11	17	′ (	) 1	1	(	) 26	64	47	. 9
Yelverton Grove FWB Church	136	•			0	) (	1	3	3 0	) -	. 86	63	4
en e								45 Y 4			)	1.0	1. 4. 2
Cape Fear Totals	4358	1710	770	108	83	3 24	1 52	65	5 3	9/	2264	1680	214

•